
TOWN OF ERIN
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

April 21, 2015
7:30 PM

Municipal Council Chamber

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Declaration Pecuniary Interest

4. Community Announcements

5. Adoption of Minutes

5.1 April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 1 - 10

6. Accounts

7. Delegations/Petitions/Presentations

7.1 Geraldine Walsh - Requesting declaration regarding the Blue Dot
Movement

11 - 16

7.2 Barry Pennington - Request to re-instate parking on Waterford Drive 17 - 19

8. Reports

8.1 Roads

8.1.1 Roads Superintendent - Roads Department Staffing 20 - 21

8.2 Water

8.2.1 Water Superintendent - Well house Data Logger Installation 22 - 24

8.3 Administration

8.3.1 CAO/Town Manager - Grass Cutting and Trimming Services
Contract

25 - 42

8.4 Finance

8.4.1 Director of Finance - 2015 Budget Report 43 - 45

8.4.2 Revenue Administrator - Water Arrears to Taxes 46 - 47



8.5 Committees

8.5.1 Ballinafad Community Centre  - March 4 and 10 meeting
minutes

48 - 52

8.5.2 Economic Development Committee - February 18 and March
11, 2015 meeting minutes

53 - 60

9. Closed Session
Matters under the following exemptions in the Municipal Act S. 239 (2) :

(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or
local board employees; HR Matter
(f) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose; SSMP

10. Return from Closed Session

10.1 Motion to Reconvene

10.2 Report Out

10.2.1 Triton Engineering - Water Servicing Class Environmental
Assessment Proposal

61 - 83

11. Correspondence

11.1 Activity List 84

11.2 Town of Erin 2014 Treaurer's Statement of Remuneration and
Expenses Paid to Council and Local Board Members

85

11.3 Minister Responsible for Seniors Affairs - Senior Achievement Award 86

11.4 Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade - Lincoln
M. Alexander Award 2015

87

11.5 Township of Madawaska Valley - Request for support resolution
regarding Hydro rates

88 - 89

11.6 Hillsburgh Firefighters Association - Requesting yearly grant for the
Annual Garage Sale held at Hillsburgh Community Centre

90 - 91

11.7 Silvia Jones, MPP Dufferin-Caledon - Request for support, Bill 36
the Respecting Private Property Act

92

11.8 Triton Engineering - Recommendation for final acceptance of site
grading for Crewson Ridge Subdivision

93 - 94

12. New Business

12.1 Councillor Sammut - Motion for reconsideration of Resolution # 15-
077, and follow up motion

95 - 101

13. By-Laws 102 - 131
2015 Budget

14. Notice of Motion



15. Adjournment



 
Minutes of the Regular Town of Erin Council Meeting 

 
April 7, 2015 

1:00 PM 
Municipal Council Chamber 

 
PRESENT: Allan Alls 

John Brennan 
Matt Sammut 
Rob Smith 
Jeff Duncan 

Mayor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 
Councillor 

 
STAFF 
PRESENT: 

Kathryn Ironmonger 
Dina Lundy 
Sharon Marshall 
Larry Van Wyck 
Andrew Hartholt 
Dan Callaghan 
Bob Cheetham 

CAO/Town Manager 
Clerk 
Director of Finance 
Road Superintendent 
Chief Building Official 
Fire Chief 
Economic Development 
Coordinator 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Alls called the meeting to order. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda 
 

Resolution #   15-109 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that the agenda be approved as amended to add the following 
items: 
 
 - Closed Session - Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege - SSMP 
 - Discuss the need for one further budget meeting 
 - Schedule strategic meeting - Topic "Vision" 

Carried 
3. Declaration Pecuniary Interest 

None. 

1



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

 
4. Community Announcements 

April 11 - UCHS Annual Rabies Clinic, 10am to 1pm 
April 18 - Celebrate Erin - Centre 2000 
April 25 - Green Legacy Trees - Town of Erin Public Works Yard - 9am to 11am 
April 25 - Home & Lifestyles Show - Centre 2000 
April 25 - Erin Radio Fundraiser "Davy the Punk" - David's Restaurant 8pm 
April 10 - Erin United Church - Ham Dinner, 5pm, 6pm, 7pm sittings and take-out 
 

5. Adoption of Minutes 
 

Resolution #   15-110 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council hereby adopts the following meeting minutes as 
circulated; 
 
March 17, 2015 Public Information Meeting - Angelstone 
March 17, 2015 Regular Meeting 
March 24, 2015 Special Closed Meeting 
March 24, 2015 Special Budget Meeting #2 
March 25, 2015 Public Information Meeting - CBM 

Carried 
 

6. Accounts 
 

Resolution #   15-111 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that the accounts in the amount of $4,876,710.48 be paid. 

Carried 
 

7. Delegations/Petitions/Presentations 
 

7.1. Steve Smith, Frank Cowan Company - Insurance Renewal 
 

Steve Smith of Frank Cowan Company explained the Town's Municipal 
Insurance Program, and changes for the 2015 renewal. 
 

 2 

2



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Resolution #   15-112 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council receives the delegation from Steve Smith of 
Frank Cowan Company regarding the 2015 Municipal Insurance Program 
Renewal. 

Carried 
 

7.2. Robert Williams, Integrity Commissioner - Report on Council Code of 
Ethics 

 
Mr. Williams presented his periodic report regarding the Council Code of 
Ethics and the impacts of rescinding the code as well as recommended 
changes to the code. 
 
Resolution #   15-113 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council receives the Periodic Report 15-02 submitted 
by Robert J. Williams, Ph.D. Integrity Commissioner, Town of Erin dated 
March 25, 2015; 
 
And that Council endorses the retention of its Code of Ethics for Elected 
Officials; 
 
And that Council adopts the proposed amendments to its Code of Ethics 
for Elected Officials as presented. 

Carried 
 

7.3. Presenters - Education Session - Environmental Assessment 
Process 

 
Ms. Slattery went through her presentation to Council on the MEA Class 
Environmental Assessment Process.  The presentation detailed the 
principles generally common to all EA processes, the MEA Class 
Environmental Assessment as it applies to the Town's SSMP, and 
Council's role and responsibility in the process.   
 
Ms. Furlong went through her presentation to Council regarding the SSMP 
next steps for the water and wastewater Class EA's, detailing each step in 

 3 

3



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

the process.  The Water Class EA is a schedule B project, and the 
Wastewater Class EA is a schedule C project and as such will take 
approximately 2 years to complete once authorization is given to 
undertake the next phase of the process. 
 
Resolution #   15-114 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council receives the presentation from Barb Slattery, 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change, regarding the Municipal 
Class EA process; 
 
And that Council receives the presentation from Christine Furlong and 
Paul Ziegler, Triton Engineering, regarding the SSMP next steps. 

Carried 
 

Items added during approval of the Agenda: 
 
Discussion on the need for one further budget meeting: 
 
Council discussed the need for an additional budget meeting before the April 
21st meeting.  Councillor Sammut moved that Council set a date to hold one 
further budget meeting; however there was no seconder to the motion. 
 
Schedule strategic meeting - Topic "Vision" 
 
Resolution #   15-115 (verbal) 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council directs that the CAO, Economic Development 
Coordinator, the Mayor, and Councillor Sammut meet to draft a recommended 
agenda for a special strategic initiatives Council meeting. 

Carried 
 
8. Reports 

 
8.1. Finance  
 

8.1.1. Director of Finance Report - Insurance Renewal 
 

 4 

4



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Resolution #   15-116 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 
Be it resolved that Council receives the Director of Finance's 
report regarding the 2015 Insurance Renewal Program; 
 
And that Council accepts the recommendation to renew the Town 
of Erin's municipal insurance program with Frank Cowan Company 
Ltd. for the term of April 1 , 2015 to March 31, 2016 for the annual 
premium of $162,190 plus tax; 
 
And that staff commit to undertake a full RFP process for the 2016 
renewal period. 

Carried 
 

8.2. Roads  
 

8.2.1. Roads Superintendent - 2015 Spring Street Sweeping 
 

Resolution #   15-117 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be It Resolved that Council receives the report of the Road 
Superintendent regarding spring street sweeping; 
And That Council accept the quotation of Mobil Sweeping for 
$86.00 per hour for the supply and operation of street sweepers. 
The Town of Erin will be responsible for supplying the necessary 
fuel.  

Carried 
 

8.2.2. Roads Superintendent - OSIM Structural Inspections 
 

Resolution #   15-118 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Duncan 
Be it resolved that Council accepts the proposal of AECOM for 
OSIM Structure re-inspections for a fee of $20,800.00 plus 
applicable taxes; 
 

 5 

5



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

And that Council endorses this deviation from the Town of Erin's 
Purchasing and Procurement Policy. 

Carried 
 

8.2.3. Roads Superintendent - Station Road Environmental 
Assessment Update 

 
Resolution #   15-119 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council receives the Station Road 
Environmental Assessment update report of the Road 
Superintendent. 

Carried 
 

8.3. Fire and Emergency Services 
 

8.3.1. Fire Chief - Monthly Fire Report - February 2015 
 

Resolution #   15-120 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 
Be it resolved that Council receives the Fire Chief's monthly report 
for February 2015. 

Carried 
 
Resolution #   15-121 (verbal) 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council directs the Fire Chief and the 
Emergency Manager to review the status of the Hillsburgh Firehall. 

Carried 
 

8.4. Administration 
 

8.4.1. 2014 Election Candidates – Notices of Default 
 

Resolution #   15-122 
Moved By  Councillor Brennan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 

 6 

6



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Be it resolved that Council receives the Clerk’s report 2015-03C 
regarding candidates in the 2014 Election that are in default of the 
Municipal Elections Act, 1998 due to failing to file documents with 
the Clerk by the relevant date as required by Section 78. 

Carried 
 

8.4.2. Economic Development Coordinator - Town of Erin Logo 
 

Resolution #   15-123 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that the Town of Erin Council supports the use of 
the logo as attached and depicted on the Town of Erin website as 
the Town of Erin's Official logo. 

Carried 
 

8.5. Committees 
 

8.5.1. Let's Get Hillsburgh Growing - February 19, 2015 meeting 
minutes 

 
Resolution #   15-124 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council receives the LGHG February 19, 2015 
meeting minutes. 

Carried 
 

9. Correspondence 
 

Resolution #   15-125 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that Council receives correspondence items 9.1 to 9.7 for 
information. 
 

Carried 
 
9.8. Hillsburgh Minor Softball Association - Requesting to store 

equipment at Victoria Park former concession booth  

 7 

7



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

 
Resolution #   15-126 
Moved By  Councillor Duncan 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council authorizes the Facilities Manager to 
undertake the removal of equipment and clean-up of the concession booth 
at Victoria Park, and to determine the appropriate rental rate for use of the 
building by the Hillsburgh Minor Softball Association. 

Carried 
 

9.9. Ernie Hardeman, MPP Oxford - Request for support resolution for 
Housing Services Corporation Accountability Act 

 
Resolution #   15-127 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 
Whereas social housing providers in Ontario are currently required to 
purchase natural gas and insurance through the Housing Services 
Corporation (HSC) or pay a fee to purchase elsewhere; 
 
And whereas social housing providers should have the right to obtain 
natural gas and insurance at the lowest cost to provide value to those in 
need of affordable housing and all taxpayers; 
 
And whereas the HSC should be subject to the same level of 
accountability and oversight as government agencies; 
 
Therefore be it resolved that the Council of the Town of Erin supports 
the Housing Services Corporation Accountability Act introduced by Oxford 
MPP Ernie Hardeman which would remove the mandatory requirement for 
social housing providers to purchase gas and insurance through the HSC, 
require HSC to report salaries over $100,000, and give the Provincial 
Auditor General the authority to audit HSC. 

Carried 
 

10. Closed Session 
 

Resolution #   15-128 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 

 8 

8



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Be it resolved that Council adjourns the meeting to proceed into a closed 
session at the hour of 4:38 pm to discuss the matter(s) pertaining to: 
 
(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local 
board employees; Building and Planning Administrator 
 
(e) litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative 
tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board; - 1 potential litigation item 
 
(f) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose. - 2 solicitor advice items - plus 1 additional item 
added during approval of the agenda 

Carried 
 

11. Return from Closed Session 
 

11.1. Motion to Reconvene 
 

Resolution #   15-129 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Sammut 
Be it resolved that the meeting be reconvened at the hour of 5:24 pm. 

Carried 
 

11.2. Report Out 
 

11.2.1. Building and Planning Assistant 
 

Mayor Alls announced that the advertisement for this position was 
posted both internally and externally. 
 
Resolution #   15-130 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that Council hires Jessica Wilton as Building and 
Planning Assistant at Grade 5, Step 1 for a period of one year 
effective April 8, 2015, subject to a 3 month probationary review. 

Carried 
 

12. By-Laws 

 9 

9



April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

 
Resolution #   15-131 
Moved By  Councillor Sammut 
Seconded By  Councillor Smith 
Be it resolved that By-Law number 15 – 14 (confirming) is hereby passed. 

Carried 
 

13. Notice of Motion 
 

Councillor Sammut advised that he will be bringing forth a motion of 
reconsideration at the next Council meeting to reconsider the decision which 
included not adding the item ‘Business Arising From the Minutes’ to the regular 
meeting agenda. 
 

14. Adjournment 
 

Resolution #   15-132 
Moved By  Councillor Smith 
Seconded By  Councillor Brennan 
Be it resolved that the meeting be adjourned at the hour of 5:26pm. 

Carried 
 

 
 

_________________________ 
Mayor 

 
 

_________________________ 
Clerk 

 
 

 10 

10



11



ACROSS THE COUNTRY, A
MOVEMENT IS GROW¡NG.

* r.*{t
,årI . 1.f"

ì

g

I
aå 'a 8åo a

I
a

¡clq¡.æm
v

,'\A/HAT'S MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE
RIGHT TO BREATHE FREIN AIR, DRINK

CLEAN WATER AND EAT HEALTHY FOOD?''

DâUP,rlUõ$rKr

ü

Y

t
4 '*-

12



iì,rl 92 CANADIANS lN
-ì.IJT DCT MCVEMENT

r, ;,-', nüw to join the rising tide of
: r-ljss the country who want our right

li-t,l fresh air, drink cleðn water and eðt
1r.¡,.)C legally recognized at all levels of

-' r't i i.r l'ì t
T

13



Half of all Canadians are
exposed to unsafe levels of

pollution

We have no national safety
regulations for drinking water or

air quality!

14



About 85% of Canadians
support the.right to a healthy

environment!

Pollution costs Canadians
$t 00 B¡llion per year!

15



The following communities have already passed declarations
supporting our right to a healthy environment.

Richmond, BC | 1.O-I4-2O1.4

The Pas, MB | 10-15-201,4
Vancouver, BC I IO-29-2OL4
Montreal, QC | 1L-23-2014
Austin, QC | 12-01-20L4
Whitemouth, MB I L2-O4-2OL4

Yellowknife, NT | L2-08-2OL4
Keremeos, BC | 1.2-15-201.4

Dunnottar, MB I I2-I7-2OL4
Victoria, BC | 1,2-LB-2OL4

Ladysmith, BC | 0L-19-20L5
Duncan, BC | 01-19-2015
Saanich, BC | 01-26-2015
Lytton, BC | 02-10-20L5
Port Moody, BC | 02-10-20L5
Central Saanich, BC | 02-16-2015

Highlands, BC | 02-16-2015
Burnaby, BC | 02-16-2015
View Royal,BC I O2-17-2OI5
Squamish, BC I O2-I7-20L5
Sooke, BC | 02-23-2015
Hamilton, ON | 02-25-201,5
Westmount, qC I 03-02-2015
Saanich, BC | 03-02-2015
Whistler, BC I 03-03-2015
Cumberland, BC I 03-09-20L5
Gulf lslandsTrust, BC | 03-11-2015
Kawartha Lakes, ON I 03-24-2015
Richmond H¡ll, ON | 03-30-20L5
Comox, BC | 04-06-20L5
Courtenay, BC | 04-07-2015
Hudson, QC | 04-07-2015

A M@Deda'ra'tuotví4,
p tt fzrt*rn;,Vt**

tl,ua* v,îüL y>roføc*t þÅfUL
a'uudt y>rotwottz tlrr-et rLgw

tC P lrvefutlrvA U"¿nrO*vtu'e'wh

16



17



18



19



 
Staff Report 

 
Report #:   Report # 2015-3R            
 
Date:    April-21-15     
 
Submitted By: Larry Van Wyck, Roads Superintendent 
      
 
Subject: Roads Department Staffing  
 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Be it resolved that Council receives the report of the Road Superintendent regarding current 
staffing levels in the Roads Department; 
And that Council authorizes the hiring of Clayton Lovell as a summer student for the period of 
April 22, 2015 to September 4, 2015 at Grade 5, Job rate on the Town’s part time grid. 
 
Background: 
 
Annually, a summer student has been hired to supplement the labour force to perform 
labourer duties. The student employed last summer Clayton Lovell is available April 13 and I 
request council authorization to hire Clayton Lovell from April 22, 2014 until September 4, 
2015. 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The cost of this additional labour has been included in the annual operating budget. 
 
Consultation: 
 
Town Manager 
Treasurer 
Roads Foreman 
 
Communications Plan: 
 
Report to Council. 
 
Conclusion: 
 

20



 
 
Council authorizes the hiring of Clayton Lovell as a summer student for the period extending 
from April 22, 2015 until September 4, 2015. 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
N/A 
 

21



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   W5-2015            
 
Date:    April-21-15     
 
Submitted By: Joe Babin 
      
 

Subject: Well house Data Logger Installation  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that council supports the recommendation of the Water Department Staff that 

the Well house Data Logger Installations be completed by Selog in the estimated amount of  

$ 10,000.00 per well house for a total project estimated amount of $ 40,000.00 + HST. 

And That council endorses this deviation from the Town of Erin’s purchasing and 

procurement policy. 

 

Background: 

 

These units are used as backup equipment to monitor our collection of data at each well 

house, should we have issues with power or loss of communications from the water tower.  

We have had some data loss in the past and have had an action item in 2014’s MOE Erin 

Drinking Water System Inspection.  As a response to our action item we told the MOE that we 

would be proceeding with this project before our next inspection.  Peter Chung from Selog 

has had a great working relationship with the Town as he has serviced our systems since 

2000.  This type of work is specialized and requires the knowledge of our systems that Selog 

can provide.  This backup equipment will be able to be utilized even when our PLC system is 

updated with SCADA.   

 

Financial Impact: 

 

The project is within the proposed 2015 budgeted amount of $ 10,000 x 4 well houses. This 

includes the cost of the data loggers as well as the installation fee. 

 

Even though the budget has not been passed I feel this project should be approved at this 

meeting due to the fact that Selog requires time to obtain the equipment and set up for the 

job.  This project needs to be completed by July 2015 in order to satisfy the action item 

requirements before the next MOE Inspection. 

22



 
 

 

I have reviewed the Procurement Bylaw and Council has the authority to approve this project 

by specific resolution. [4.1.1]  

 

 

Consultation: 

 

Water Department Staff 

 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Budget discussions and council report 

 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The installations of the data loggers will ensure the Town is meeting the data collection 

requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 and therefore maintain compliance with 

the Ministry of Environment. 

 

 

Appendices: 

 

 

Appendix A:  Erin RFQ Well Data Logging 

23



. . . . . . . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . 
 

Selog     facsimile transmittal 

To: Town Of Erin Fax: (905)  

From: Peter Chung Date: 20 February 2015 

Re: Independent Data Loggng for All Sites  Pages: 1 

Attention: Joe Babin / Larry Wheeler   

 Urgent  For Review  Please Comment  Please Reply  For Your Information 

 

 
RE: Independent (Backup) Data Logging at all Well Sites (4)  

 
As per discussions the following would provided: Data Logging, in conjunction with the existing 
data storage by the PLCs.  
It would involve the supply and installation of Data Logging equipment at each site along with 
modifications to the existing process wiring to accommodate this feature. 
 
Data logging software would also be supplied and installed in the existing laptop for data retrieval 
and monitoring of the equipment. 
 
Includes: 

 Supply installation of Data Logging Equipment 

 Supply and installation of current Isolators 

 Supply and Installation of Data Logging software on the existing Laptops (2). 

 On site startup and commissioning 

 Training 
 
Hillsburgh Well Site: Total:  $ 9,950.00  Taxes Extra 

Glendevon Well Site: Total:  $ 9,600.00 Taxes Extra 

Erin Well No.7 : Total:  $ 9,950.00 Taxes Extra 

Erin Well No.8:  Total:  $ 9,950.00 Taxes Extra 

 
Note: It takes about 3 to 4 weeks to implement each site depending on the number of site 

approvals. Hardware delivery is about 1 to 2 weeks depending on stock. 
The work on each site is independent to each other, but the existing service 
laptops (2) must be available for this implementation. 

 
Sincerely, 

Peter Chung 
 

150 Armstrong Ave.- Unit No.4,  
Georgetown, Ontario L7G 5G8 
Tel: (905) 873-7373 
Fax: (905) 873-7447 

 

24



 
Staff Report 

 
Report #:   2015-03CAO            
 
Date:    April-21-15     
 
Submitted By: Kathryn Ironmonger, CMO, CMMIII 
      
 
Subject: Grass Cutting and Trimming Services Contract  
 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Be it resolved that Council receive the report of the CAO/Town Manager regarding the 
Grass Cutting and Trimming Services Contract; 
And that Council accepts the review committee’s recommendation to accept the 2015 Grass 
Cutting and Trimming Services proposal submitted by Mr. Markus Maintenance for the period 
of April 28th 2015 to October 31, 2015. 
 
Background: 
 
The attached Request for Proposal for the 2015 Grass Cutting and Trimming Services was 
posted on the Town’s website and advertised in the local newspaper.  Six proposals were 
received.  The review committee recommends awarding Mr. Markus, the current provider, the 
2015 Grass Cutting and Trimming Services contract.  A copy of the proposal is attached. 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The cost associated with the Grass Cutting and Trimming Services Contract will be within the 
2015 budget.  It is anticipated that, based on the per cut bid and the agreed number of cuts, 
the service contract would be $36, 760 plus HST. 
 
Consultation: 
 
The submissions were reviewed by the CAO/Town Manager, the Road Superintendent and 
Mayor Alls. 
 
Communications Plan: 
 
N/A 
 

25



 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The Town of Erin accepts the submission submitted by Mr. Markus for the 2015 Grass Cutting 
and Trimming Services. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Attachment 1 – Request for Proposal – 2015 Grass Cutting and Trimming Services on certain 
municipal lands 
 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 
Staff Report 

 
Report #:   2015-03            
 
Date:    April-21-15     
 
Submitted By: Sharon Marshall, Director of Finance 
      
 
Subject: 2015 BUDGET REPORT  
 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Be it resolved that Council receives the Director of Finance’s Report for information. 
 
And That Council considers the 2015 Budget By-law for adoption. 
 
Background: 
 
2015 Budget deliberations officially began this year with a Special Council meeting on 
January 27, 2015 where the proposed 5-Year Capital Plan was re-introduced to the public 
and Council.  Two Special Meetings were held in March to consider all the operating and 
capital estimates for 2015.  The final Proposed Budget will be presented at a Public 
Information meeting to be held just prior to the April 21st Regular Council Meeting.   
 
The 2015 Budget By-law consolidates the “operational” requirements along with the “capital” 
estimates and funding for the current year.  The financial requirements of the Town’s 
committees and boards have also been consolidated, including the Erin Village BIA, Erin 
Tennis Club, Ballinafad Community Centre Committee and the “Let’s Get Hillsburgh Growing” 
Committee. 
 
It is important to understand that this Budget By-law, if adopted, does not set the tax rates for 
the final 2015 tax billing.  The Tax Levying By-law will be submitted in May for consideration, 
after the County sets the tax “policies”.  We expect the County will be adopting the 2015 tax 
policies for Wellington at their April 30th meeting. 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 

43



 
 
The Town of Erin’s TOTAL 2015 BUDGET is $13,195,962, compared to $13,350,991 in 
2014.  The Town continues to replace and improve our municipal assets with the approval of 
a $3,899,637 Capital budget. 
 
The tax dollars to be raised to fund the Town’s own needs are $5,762,577 compared to 
$5,533,756 in 2014. 
 
Budget Highlights: 
 
 Grants to Local Groups and Community organizations – continued financial support for 
community groups in the amount of $42,950. 
 
 Commitment to Economic Development – the addition of a new departmental budget of 
$183,082 to support a local Economic Development Officer, business retention initiatives, 
marketing, and the rejuvenation of an economic development committee and task force. 
 
 Source Water Protection – as required by the Province, the Town has budgeted 
$67,500 in 2015 to “implement source protection plans and support sustainable, local actions 
to protect drinking water”. For this year, the costs are funded with a Source Protection 
Municipal Implementation Fund grant from the Province of Ontario. 
 
 SSMP – the Budget includes $490,590 in 2015 to continue the Water and Wastewater 
Municipal Class Environmental Assessment (EA) phases of our Servicing and Settlement 
Master Plan. 
 
 Capital Projects- 
  
  Fire – purchase of a new All-Terrain Vehicle, trailer and equipment with $35,000 
funded through local donations; the purchase of a replacement Custom Pumper Rescue 
Truck beginning with a chassis this year for $264,000. 
 
  Roads – continuation towards the reconstruction of Sideroad 17 ($624,000); 
completion of the Station Street Bridge Rehabilitation Environmental Assessment (EA) 
($145,057); completion of design and start of the EA process for replacement of Bridge 2045 
(4th Line) ($35,000); replacement of a pick-up truck ($40,000); reconstruction of George 
Street, Hillsburgh and Daniel Street, Erin ($317,130); major resurfacing projects on the 2nd 
Line and other ($410,000); and construction of replacement Bridge 2061 in Cedar Valley 
($500,000). 
 
  Recreation – replacement of the “boards” in the Hillsburgh Arena; replacement 
and upgrading of the Victoria Park playground equipment ($30,000); resurfacing of the Centre 

44



 
 
2000 tennis courts ($75,000); and installation of an energy-efficient  “desuperheater” in the 
Erin Arena ($25,000). 
    
 
Consultation: 
 
The Department Heads prepared the 2015 estimates.  Presentations of the initial estimates 
were made to the CAO, and revised estimates were consolidated into the final format by the 
Director of Finance. 
 
Communications Plan: 
 
The Proposed Budget will be introduced through a Power Point presentation at a Public 
Meeting at 6:30 p.m. April 21st. 
 
Copies of the 2015 Budget By-law will be circulated with the April 21st Council Meeting 
Agenda. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Department Heads were diligent in meeting the expectations of Council to achieve a ‘net 
operations’ budget impact of +1.70% - somewhat less that the Consumer Price Index rate of 
inflation as posted by Stats Canada for the final quarter 2014.  We continue to strive to meet 
the needs for rehabilitation and replacement of our aging infrastructure as set out in our Asset 
Management Plan with Council’s commitment to the substantial 2015 Capital Budget.   
 
I recommend that Council adopts the 2015 Budget By-law as circulated.  
 
Appendices: 
 
n/a 
 

45



 

Staff Report 

 

Report #:   2015-01            
 
Date:    April-15-15     
 
Submitted By: Louise Warn 
      
 

Subject: Water Arrears to Taxes  
 
 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Be it resolved that the Director of Finance be authorized to add the following outstanding 

accounts from the Water System rates to the Tax Collector’s Roll: 

 

Roll #: 23 16 000  011 12300   $623.59 
   011 01400   $1,521.02 
   011 01600   $604.03 
   011 12800   $3,303.79 
   010 06800   $1,784.19 
   011 21262   $1,525.23 
   010 20300   $3,641.42 
   011 18600   $949.76 
   009 07202   $2,816.52 
   009 08323   $741.59 
   010 13135   $1,254.26 
   009 07204   $2,455.48 
   009 07290   $740.50 
   009 08338   $1,859.18 

 

Background: 

 

Unpaid water accounts were issued collection notices.  The above water accounts remain 

outstanding. 

 

Financial Impact: 

 

Total amount of the water arrears to be added to taxes $23,820.56 

 

Consultation: 

 

Town of Erin By-Law 11-23 

46



 
 

Section 4 Collection 

4.2 If the account has not been paid within sixty (60) days after the mailing of the overdue 

notice, the municipality may shut off the supply of the public utility by the municipality to 

land, provided that the municipality shall provide forty-eight (48) hours notice to the 

owners and occupants of the land by personal service or prepaid mail or by posting the 

notice on the land in a conspicuous place, and if the notice is given by prepaid mail the 

forty-eight hour period shall commence on the third day after the date of the mailing.   
 

4.3 (a)  If a customer omits, neglects or refuses to pay any bill rendered, whether for water 

service pipes, water service charges or any other monies to which the Town of Erin 

may be entitled in respect of the water services to such premises under this By-law, the 

Town of Erin may, at its discretion, shut off the flow of water to the premises and in 

addition to the amount owing and unpaid, a disconnection charge as shown in 

Schedule “B” of this by-law, will be levied against the delinquent account.   
 

 (b)  The treasurer may add charges imposed under this By-law for the supply of a 

public utility to the tax roll for the property to which the public utility was supplied, and 

collect them in the same manner as municipal taxes. 
 

 (c)  Pursuant to subsection 398 (2) of the Act every property to which Public Utility 

Services have been supplied, regardless of the party to whom they were supplied, may 

have the charges therefore added to the tax roll for the property and they may be 

collected in the same manner as municipal taxes.  

 

 

Communications Plan: 

 

Water customers receive quarterly water bills, and subsequent reminder notices if the water 

account remains unpaid.  Many attempts are made to collect water arrears prior to adding to 

them to the tax roll.  Collections notices were sent to customers on February 17th, 2015.  

Notice of water arrears being added to taxes was sent to the above water accounts on April 2, 

2015. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

Despite attempts to collect water arrears, several accounts remain outstanding.  In addition, 

the water customers were also provided the opportunity to make arrangements for a schedule 

of payments in order to pay the outstanding water arrears.  The above water accounts have 

not paid the water arrears nor have they made arrangements for any type of payments. 

 

Appendices: 

 

n/a 

 

47



48



49



50



51



52



As Amended – March 11th, 2015 

ERIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (EEDC) 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

(February 18, 2015) 

 

Attendance: Mayor Al Alls, CAO Kathryn Ironmonger, Chair Maria Britto, Mary Shields, Rob 

Smith, Chris Naraysingh, Wayne Stickley, Jamie Cheyne, Kieth MacKinnon, Jo Fillery, John 

Gainor, Mary Venneman, Chris Bailey, David Spencer 

Staff: Bob Cheetham, Economic Development Coordinator 

Absent: Vanessa Parker, Susan Powell 

1. Opening Remarks  

 Mayor Allan Alls – The Mayor welcomed all members and indicated his and 

 Councils commitment to economic development and promotion of the Town of Erin 

 over the next four years. The Mayor reinforced previous statements recorded in the 

 media that the Town of Erin is “open for business.” The Mayor went on to introduce 

 the new Chairwoman of the EEDC Maria Britto and outlined her extensive background in 

 real estate and the field of economic development, tourism and healthcare. 

 CAO/Town Manager Kathryn Ironmonger – The CAO welcome members of the  EEDC 

 and Bob Cheetham the Town’s new Economic Development Coordinator and 

 expressed her excitement about moving forward with economic development in the 

 community. CAO Ironmonger outlined her personal support for moving the process 

 forward and developing a new approach to how customer service would be provided in 

 the community. 

2. Chair Maria Britto – The Chair provided greater background and her experience in 

Brampton, Caledon, the Headwaters and with regard to her Chair role with the Central 

West Local Health Integrated Network (LHIN). Chair Britto talked about streamlining the 

process and building momentum within the Town of Erin and her appreciation for being 

selected the Chair of the EEDC. 

 

3. Introduction EEDC Members: Members introduced themselves and provided an 

overview of past experience. 

 

4. Declaration of Conflict and Interest Therein – Non 

53



As Amended – March 11th, 2015 

 

5. Momentum Presentation – Bob Cheetham provided a Powerpoint overview of the 

Economic Development Coordinator’s responsibilities and the Town’s expectations 

moving forward. 

 

6. New Business: 

 

6.1 EEDC Terms of Reference - the Coordinator provided an overview of the EE DC 

terms of Reference 

6.2 Erin Economic Development 2015-2018 Action Plan – The Coordinator outlined 

expectations that the EEDC was to mandated to work with the community to 

develop the contents of a four year action plan for Council’s review and follow-

up. The Economic Development Coordinator will write the final action plan with 

completion July 2015. 

6.3 Task Force Implementation -  The Coordinator provided an overview of the four 

independent Task Forces being established to review and report on the following 

areas: 

 Equine & Agriculture Task Force 

 Tourism Task Force 

 Downtown Revitalization Task Force 

 Business Attraction Task Force 

 

 

7. Members Briefing Manual – The Economic Development Coordinator provided an 

overview of the contents of the EEDC members Briefing Manual. 

 

8. Roundtable – Members provided comments that included: 

 

 Mary S. – What will the EEDC be called? 

 Wayne - Provide a reference guide explaining acronyms  

 Wayne - Provide follow-up material in PDF Format 

  Mary - How will EEDC operate and what will the process be? 

 Chris – How information was to flow; coordinator or chair? 

 Chair – Information should flow through the Coordinator. Briefing notes will be 

provided on specific questions raised. 

 

9. Next Meeting Dates: The next two meetings of the EEDC will be held Wednesday March 

11th and Wednesday April 8th, 2015 at 7:00pm. 

 

54



As Amended – March 11th, 2015 

10.  Adjournment  

 

 Moved By: Rob Smith  

 THAT the meeting of the EEDC be adjourned until Wednesday March 11th, 2015 

 at 7:00 pm  

  

 CARRIED 

  

 Chair Maria Britto ___________________________________________ 

 Economic Development Coordinator ____________________________ 

 Date: __________________ 

55



ERIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (EEDC) 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

(March 11, 2015) 

 

Attendance: Mayor Al Alls, Chair Maria Britto, Mary Shields, Rob Smith, Wayne Stickley, Jamie 

Cheyne, Keith MacKinnon, Jo Fillery, John Gainor, Mary Venneman, Chris Bailey, David Spencer, 

Vanessa Parker, Susan Powell 

Regrets: Chris Naraysingh 

Staff: Bob Cheetham, Economic Development Coordinator 

1. Chair’s Opening Remarks – Welcome 

 

2. Introductions – n/a 

 

3. Motion to Approve the Agenda 

 

3.1      Moved By: Jo Fillery  Seconded By: Mary Shields 

That the Agenda for the March 11, 2015 meeting of the EEDC be approved 

as circulated. 

CARRIED 

 

4. Declaration of Conflict and Interest Therein – None 

 

5. Adoption of the February 18th, 2015 Minutes 

 

5.1  Moved By: Mary Venneman Seconded By: Wayne Stickley 

 That the Minutes of the February 18th, 2015 meeting of the EEDC  be 

 accepted as amended to include David Spencer in the attendance  listing. 

 CARRIED 

 

56



 

6.  Business Arising: 

 

 6.1  Calls for Expressions of Interest – Bob Cheetham provided an   

  overview of the response to the call for Expression of Interest.   

  As only two responses had been received it was suggested    

  that the Committee entertain going to individual public    

  meetings for each of the four identified priority discussions. 

 

6.2 Task Force Draft Terms of Reference – Due to lack of interest from the 

public the Terms of Reference for the Task Force initiative were not 

circulated.  

 

6.3 Town of Erin Website – Bob Cheetham reported on the new Town of Erin 

website and its fresh new look and user friendly format. A discussion 

ensued surrounding the business listing and use of social media to 

communicate with the public. 

 

6.4 Meeting Schedule – Dates and times for future meetings of the EEDC were 

discussed and set as: 

 

- - April 8th  

-  May 13th 

-  June 10th 

-  July 8th 

-  August 12th 

-  September 9th 

-  October 14th 

-  November 11th 

-  December 9th 

   All meetings are scheduled from 7:00pm-9:00pm 

 

7. New Business: 

 7.1 SWOT Assessment Process: - EEDC members focused on the   

  community’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. Matrix  

  with outcomes as attached. Scribe: Maria Britto 

 

57



7.2 Task Force Meeting Schedule: Bob Cheetham reported that the Task Force 

undertaking needed to begin in April and be completed by May 9th. Mary 

Venneman noted that the EEDC needed to establish a measurement 

process. Chair Britto indicated that the Health Links use a process that she 

will bring forward for consideration in the future. Mayor Alls indicated 

Council wanted input from the community and recommendations for 

approaching development in the future. It was decided that forum 

meetings would be scheduled from 7:00pm-9:00pm. 

 

7.3 Task Force Chairs – Maria Britto will Chair the public forum meetings 

 

8. Other Business: None  

 

9. Roundtable:  None 

 

10. Adjournment:  Moved By: Wayne Stickley 

   That the EEDC adjourn until Wednesday April 8th, 2015 at 7:00pm 

   CARRIED 

  

58



EEDC SWOT ASSESSMENT OUTCOMES (March 11, 2015)  

 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 

-History 
-Longevity 
-Location 
-Knowledge and Skills of Citizens 
-Green Space 
-Local Radio 
-Trailways 
-Volunteers 
-2 Banks (RBC/TD) 
-Cleanliness 
-Fall Fair 
-EWCC/Home & Lifestyle Show 
-Quality of Life/Great Place to Live 
-Equine/Agricultural Community 
-Friendliness/Inviting 
-Bakery 
-Proximity to -
Oakville/Guelph/Georgetown/Brampton 
-New Mayor 
-EDO Officer 
-New Municipal Government/Access to 
Members 
-Centre 2000 – Mun. Erin Cinema 
-Schools 
-Dual language Schooling 
-Ecclectic Mix of Shops 
-Credit River/Waterways 
-“One Of” Town Toy Store 
-Partnerships with Borders 
-3 Gas Stations 
-Heritage Bldgs./Maintenance is Good 
-Local Celebrities 
-Good Transportation (Hwy 124) 

-Lack of Accommodation 
-Waste Water (lack of Services) 
-High taxes (Res./Industrial 
balance) 
-Store Hours 
-Availability of Labour Force 
-No Business Welcome Package 
-Lack Youth/Young Adult 
Activities 
-Business Turnover 
-High Retail Store Vacancies 
-Truck Traffic 
-Signage – Needs Updating 
-Inconsistent Hydro (Dirty 
Power) 
-Lack of High Response Internet 
-Celluar Issues 
-Youth Leaving Community 
-No Crosswalk 
-No Public Transit 
-EERIN or ERIN? 
-Slow Response Time from Town 
-No Crosswalk in Hillsburgh 
-Lack of Post -Secondary Edu. 
-Lack of Support for Business By 
-Local community 
-Industrial – Tough Compete $ 
-Business vs Municipal –
Expectations 
-Pricey Groceries/Commuter -
Population 
-No Clear Vision/Foresight 
-Hours of Operation 

-Want to Shop Local 
-Open for Business 
-Bldg’s provide Opportunity 
-Business Incubator 
-Servicing Potential 
-Green Belt/Green Space 
-Equine Development 
-Bed & Bales 
-Tourism Development 
-Higher Profile Events 
-Developers Calling 
-Boardwalk/Trail Development 
-Pan Am Games 
-Soccer Opportunities 
-Use of Downtown Park for 
Events 
-Downtown Erin/Hillsburgh 
-Organic Hub 
-Equine Hub 
-Slogan Branding/DNA 
-Snowmobile Traffic 
-Car Hobbiest 
-Winter Carnival 
-St.Patrick’s Day – WE ARE REAL 
-Proximity to the GTA 
-Seasonal Attraction 
Destination 
-Upside Down Sale 
-E-Promotion/Social venues 
-Marketing Strategy 
-Ramp Up Communications 
-Contract Buses (Denny’s) 
-Engaging Youth/Mentoring 

-Servicing /Lack of Response 
-Franchise Sprawl 
-Lack of Funding 
-Look Outside Downtown 
/Town a a Whole 
-Lack of Industrial Plan 
-Climate Change 
-Infrastructure (water, sewer, 
Septic, Internet, Phone) 
-Emergency Action Plan 
-Communication Plan 
-CIP of Bordering Towns 
-Threat of Ecological Accidents 
-Apathy 
-Burnout 
-Demographics 
-Lack of Healthcare Facilities 
-Tagging 
-Connectivity B2B 
-Collaboration R2R 
-Provincial Funding Sources 
(RED?/Sewage Treatment?) 
-Proximity to Neighbours – 
Business 
-Land Investment 
-Accessibility to Businesses 
-Crime rate/Risk 
-Master Plan- Identity? 
- No Service Plan 
Budget Availability 
 
 
 

59



EEDC SWOT ASSESSMENT OUTCOMES (March 11, 2015)  

 
-Artistic community 
-Everdale 
-Angelstone Equestrian Facility 
-Organic Meats 
-Tourism Destination 
Day Trip – Scenic Area 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-Lack of Collaboration /Sectors 
-Old Erin Public School Site 
Guardian Building? 
-Need More Fine Dining 
-Lack of Affordable Housing 
Disconnect between Agri  and 
Community 
-Lack Economic Development --
Attraction Package 
-Lack of Industrial Space 
-No Inventory List 
 
 

-Connect Industry with Students 
-Job Fair 
-Business Attraction Efforts 
-Micro Distillery – Seed to Save 
-Fine Dining/ Culinary Specialty 
-Country Experience 
-Succession Planning 
-Sustainability 
-Tourism Symposium (March 
23rd.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

60



61



62



63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
  

64



ERINSSMP– WTER
COMPONENTCLSSE

MUNICIPLWTERSUPPLY
SSESSMENTNDUPGRDES

TERMOFREFERENCE

Prepared for:
The Town of Erin

Prepared by:
Blackport Hydrogeology Inc.
April 14, 2015

65



i

Table of Contents 

1.0 BACKGROUND.................................................................................................................. 1

1.1 SERVICING AND SETTLEMENT MASTER PLAN.............................................................. 1

1.2 ANTICIPATED CLASS EA REQUIREMENTS – WATER SUPPLY COMPONENT ............. 2

2.0 SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION............................................................... 3

2.1 PREVIOUS STUDIES ......................................................................................................... 3

2.2 CURRENT WATER SUPPLY SOURCES ........................................................................... 4

2.3 GROUNDWATER QUALITY ............................................................................................... 5

3.0 DETAILED WORK PLAN ................................................................................................... 6

3.1 APPROACH AND FACTORS TO CONSIDER FOR ADDITIONAL WATER SUPPLY......... 6

3.2 TASK 1 – DEVELOP A WORK PLAN AND PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE............................ 8

3.3 TASK 2 – ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY OPTIONS ................................................ 8

3.4 TASK 3 – SECURE DRILLING CONTRACTOR AND LICENCED WELL TECHNICIAN ..... 8

3.5 TASK 4 – TEST WELL(S) DRILLING AND ASSESSMENT ................................................ 9

3.6 TASK 5 – TEST WELL ANALYSES AND YIELD ASSESSMENT.......................................10

3.7 TASK 6 – SOURCE WATER PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS ........................................10

3.8 TASK 7 – DEVELOP PRODUCTION WELL(S) AND OBTAIN A PTTW .............................11

4.0 PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE.....................................................................................12

5.0 PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE..............................................................................................13

List of Tables          

Table 2.1 Summary of Erin Municipal Supply Wells 
Table 3.1 Summary of Water Supply Wells – Surplus/deficit for Maximum Day Demand 
Table 4.1 Preliminary Cost Estimate and Time Allocation 
Table 5.1 Preliminary Project Schedule 

66



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

1

1.0 Background

1.1 SERVICING AND SETTLEMENT MASTER PLAN 

A Servicing and Settlement Master Plan (SSMP) was initiated by the Town of Erin in 2008 as 

part of the Town of Erin Official Plan (OP) to address long-term municipal infrastructure and 

servicing of municipal water and wastewater in the Town of Erin. The goal of the SSMP is to 

develop appropriate strategies for planning and municipal servicing consistent with provincial, 

county and local municipal planning policies. 

The SSMP followed the Master Plan approach as defined in the province’s Municipal Class 

Environmental Assessment (Class EA) document, dated October 2000 and amended in 2007 

and 2011. The Master Plan was conducted at a broad level of assessment and identified 

specific projects that require more detailed investigations, at different levels of assessment, 

following a specific set of criteria or Schedules: 

 Schedule A - generally includes normal or emergency operational activities and the 

environmental effects of these activities are usually minimal and as result these types of 

projects are pre-approved; 

 Schedule A+ - introduced in 2007, these projects are pre-approved; however the public 

is to be advised prior to project implementation, and the manner in which the public is 

advised is to be determined by the proponent; 

 Schedule B – generally includes improvements and minor expansions to existing 

facilities, and as a result there is the potential for some adverse environmental impacts 

and the proponent is required to proceed through a screening process including 

consultation with those who might be affected;   

 Schedule C – generally includes construction of new facilities and major expansions to 

existing facilities with these projects proceeding through the environmental planning 

process as outlined in the Class EA. 

The SSMP completed the first two phases of the Municipal Class EA process as required by the 

Master Plan approach, with Phase 1 being the data collection and background study phase (B. 

M. Ross and Associates, 2012). As part of the Phase 1, a summary of existing conditions, 

including hydrogeology, water supply and water quality was presented (Credit Valley 

Conservation et al, 2011). The Phase 2 work focused on the development and evaluation of 

solutions to address various components of growth in the Town of Erin over a 25 year planning 

horizon and presented in the Servicing and Settlement Master Plan Final Report (B. M. Ross 

and Associates, August 2014). 

67



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

2

1.2 ANTICIPATED CLASS EA REQUIREMENTS – WATER SUPPLY 
COMPONENT 

As presented in the SSMP, several deficiencies in the municipal water system were identified, 

which need to be addressed, beyond the requirements to expand the water supply system to 

meet future supply and storage demands, as summarized in Section 7 of the SSMP Final 

Report (B. M. Ross and Associates, August 2014).  The following is a list of potential Class EA 

requirements, related to water supply, which were identified in the SSMP: 

 Installing a water main in Erin and Hillsburgh to connect existing unconnected properties 

to the existing distribution system: Schedule A+, establish, extend or enlarge a water 

distribution system and all the works necessary to connect the system to an existing 

system or water source, provided all such facilities are either in an existing road 

allowance or utility corridor.  If all facilities are not in a road allowance or utility corridor, 

the project is subject to Schedule B. 

 Redeveloping the existing Bel-Erin well supply may be a Schedule A undertaking: install 

new or replacement wells or deepen existing wells or increase pumping capacity of 

existing wells, at an existing municipal well site, where the existing municipal yield will 

not be exceeded. It becomes a Schedule B undertaking if the existing rated yield is 

exceeded. 

 Adding additional wells at new locations to provide for new growth is a Schedule B

undertaking: establish a well at a new municipal well site. This Class EA would be 

looking at potential new sites with available yields and acceptable water quality. 

 Adding new water storage facilities to support existing and new growth would be a 

Schedule B undertaking: establish new or expand/replace existing water storage 

facilities. 

 In order to consider and possibly implement a connected water system from both 

villages, a Class EA process would need to be initiated. Possible routing could include 

county roads or the Cataract trail system. The resultant project is probably a Schedule 

B undertaking: establish, extend or enlarge a water distribution system and all the works 

necessary to connect the system or water source, where such facilities are not in either 

an existing road allowance or an existing utility corridor.  This would include any water 

pumping stations required for pressure purposes. 

Based on the finding of the of the SSMP, related to water supply, the following work plan has 

been developed to address deficiencies in the existing source water supply and to address 

future source water supply requirements. 

68



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

3

2.0 Summary of Background Information

2.1 PREVIOUS STUDIES 

Considerable hydrogeological information is available from previous investigations and studies 

conducted for the Town of Erin and/or Credit Valley Conservation (CVC).  The following 

summarizes the primary sources of information, and type of information in each report, available 

to aid in assessing potential areas to target for additional municipal groundwater supplies: 

 West Credit Subwatershed Study – Characterization Report, prepared by CVC, 

November 1997.  This includes information on general geology, hydrogeology 

recharge/discharge conditions and baseflow. 

 West Credit Subwatershed Study Draft – Impact Assessment Report Phase II, 

prepared by CVC, January 2001.  Additional baseflow data was collected and a 

groundwater flow model developed as part of several studies in the West Credit 

subwatershed. 

 Groundwater Management Study, Town of Erin, prepared by Blackport 

Hydrogeology Inc., 2005.  Much of the work was done in 2001 and 2002 and 

included development of a groundwater flow model, assessment of capture zones, 

wellhead protection areas and aquifer vulnerability. 

 Source Water Protection, Interim Watershed Characterization Report for the Credit 

River Watershed, prepared by CVC, 2007. This study included an updated of 

information on a watershed wide basis, containing information, mainly in digital form 

on geology, water quality and updated well field capture zones. 

 County of Wellington, Groundwater Protection Study, prepared by MHBC, Golder 

Associates and SRG, September 2006.  The previous groundwater flow model was 

updated as part of the county study, using the most recent hydrogeologic information 

and pumping data to refine the well field capture zones and aquifer vulnerability to 

contamination. 

 WHPA Delineation and Vulnerability Assessment, Town of Erin Municipal Wells, 

prepared by Blackport Hydrogeology Inc. and Golder Associates Ltd, April 2010. The 

groundwater flow model was updated and new assessment performed in accordance 

with the Clean Water Act (2006). 

 Issue Evaluation and Threats Assessment, Town of Erin Municipal Wells, prepared 

by Blackport Hydrogeology Inc. and Golder Associates Ltd, June 2010, in 

accordance with the Clean Water Act (2006). 

69



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

4

 Proposed Updated Approved Assessment Report: Credit Valley Source Protection 

Area, prepared by Credit Valley Conservation Authority, February 2015. 

 Historical reports for municipal well test drilling and water supply assessment for the 

former Erin Village and for Hillsburgh in the former Township of Erin. 

Additional information is also available through various consultants’ reports, related to 
development applications, aggregate sites and groundwater contamination studies as well as 

information on the existing municipal wells from the Town of Erin through the Drinking Water 

Surveillance Program and annual monitoring data.  

Source Protection studies, completed, under the Clean Water Act (2006) produced locally 

developed, science based Assessment Reports and Source Protection Plans.  Much of this 

information can be used to eliminate areas considered too vulnerable to groundwater 

contamination or having a potential for mutual well interference with existing water supplies. 

This initial screening will aid in limiting potential issues related to the Source Water Protection 

Plan developed for the Town of Erin.  

2.2 CURRENT WATER SUPPLY SOURCES 

There are currently two separate municipal water supply systems in the Town of Erin, one 

system in Hillsburgh and one in Erin Village.  There are currently four wells in operation, two in 

Erin Village and two in Hillsburgh.  There is one non-operating water supply system known as 

the Bel-Erin wells located adjacent to the Bel-Erin subdivision in the south part of Erin Village. 

Municipal Well No. E7 and Well No. E8, located in Erin Village, are operated under consolidated 

PTTW 8112-9CPNNW.  The Bel-Erin wells are also included in the consolidated PTTW for Erin 

Village.  Municipal Well No. H2 (Hillsburgh Heights), and Municipal Well No. H3 (Victoria Park 

Well) are located in Hillsburgh and operate under PTTW No. 6306-8X5KRY and PTTW 

No.8548-6SBGWC, respectively.  Table 2.1 presents a summary of well depths and maximum 

permitted pumping rates and average pumping rates from 2011-2013. 

Table 2.1 Summary of Erin Municipal Water Supply Wells

Well
Location Total Depth

(m)

Maximum 

Permitted Rate

Average pumping 

rate 2011-2013

E7 bedrock 43 2,160,000 L/day 540,000 L/day

E8 bedrock 46 1,964,000 L/day 498,000 L/day

H3 bedrock 57.9 653,760 L/day 101,000 L/day

H2 bedrock 88 982,000 L/day 67,000 L/day

BE1, BE2 overburden 11.3-16.2 655,200 L/day Not operational

70



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

5

2.3 GROUNDWATER QUALITY 

Water quality data is collected through operational monitoring of the water supply systems 

under the Drinking-Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03), as part of the Drinking Water 

Surveillance Program (DWSP). The most recent results indicate that all organic parameters, 

which include volatile organic compounds, pesticides and herbicides, were non-detectable at all 

operational municipal wells in the Town of Erin.   

Trihalomethane (THM) concentrations ranged from 2.6 to 6.7 ug/L, well below the current 

drinking water standard of 100 ug/L.  No exceedances of trace metals were noted; however, as 

previously indicated, there is a treatment system on Well H2 in Hillsburgh, to remove lead.  

Elevated concentrations of lead were found in the raw water near or at the ODWS of 10 ug/L, 

requiring treatment.  The source of the lead is interpreted to be naturally occurring in the 

bedrock.   

Sodium concentrations range from 5-12 mg/L for all operation wells, typical of background water 

quality in the bedrock aquifer.   Nitrate concentrations range from non-detect (ND) to 1.2 mg/L at 

Well No. H2, located upgradient of Hillsburgh.  An assessment of historical water quality was 

conducted as part of the Source Water Protection, Interim Watershed Characterization Report 

for the Credit River Watershed (CVC, 2007).  No water quality trends were noted, with respect 

to increasing concentrations of sodium, chloride or nitrate over time at any of the municipal 

wells. 

Water quality results indicate that there are no apparent impacts from non-point sources of 

contamination (i.e. road salting, septic effluent or fertilizer application) in Well E7 and Well E8, 

given the very low sodium, chloride and nitrate concentrations.  It would appear that, given the 

location of the wells, there is little local recharge to the wells.  Well H3 and Well E8 likely obtain 

most water from deeper in the bedrock, having higher sulphate concentrations of 204 and 145 

mg/L respectively, compared to the other wells.   

71



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

6

3.0 Detailed Work Plan

3.1 APPROACH AND FACTORS TO CONSIDER FOR ADDITIONAL WATER 
SUPPLY 

Water supply capacity was estimated under various existing population and future growth 

scenarios for Erin and Hillsburgh as presented in the SSMP Final Report (B M Ross, August, 

2014). Table 3.1 provides a summary of the surplus/deficit water supply capacity for the existing 

water system under different population scenarios. 

Existing 
Population 
and Growth 

Scenarios

Max day 
demand
m3/day

Max 
available*1

m3/day

Surplus/deficit
m3/day

Max with 
Bel Erin
wells*2

m3/day

Surplus/deficit
m3/day

1a – Erin all 
existing

2475 1,968 -507 2,623 +148

1b –
Hillsburgh all 
existing

795 654 -141 n/a n/a

2a – Erin + 
750

3492 1,968 -1524 2,623 -869

2b –
Hillsburgh + 
750

1222 654 -568 n/a n/a

3a – Erin + 
1500

4174 1,968 -2206 2,623 -1551

3b –
Hillsburgh + 
1500

1650 654 -996 n/a n/a

4 –
Combined all 
existing

3809 3,603 -206 4,258 +449

5 –
Combined + 
1500

5084 3,603 -1481 4,258 -826

*1 assumes only the highest capacity well is out of service for wells used in each scenario  
*2 Bel-Erin wells are permitted but require additional assessment for treatment requirements 

Table 3.1 – Summary of Water Supply Wells –surplus/deficit for maximum day demand 
for existing population and future growth scenarios 

72



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

7

As indicated, the maximum available water supply assumes the highest capacity well is out of 

service for each scenario. It is also assumed the maximum permitted water taking capacity is 

available for use. The Bel-Erin wells are included as an optional source of water. The Bel-Erin 

wells are currently not operational, and although permitted the wells will require a water 

treatment system before they are operational. Their current source water classification is non-

GUDI, but without adequate filtration, which will require further assessment. These water supply 

demand scenarios form the basis for the requirements for new water supply wells. 

There are a number of factors or assumptions that need to be considered in the targeting and 

development of any potential new water supply well locations, including but not limited to the 

following: 

 wells should be located outside of the Well Head Protection Areas (WHPAs) of existing 

municipal wells, minimizing the potential for mutual well interference;  

 well locations should have a reasonable level of natural protection from surface sources 

of contamination; 

 well locations should be sufficiently removed from potential or known sources of 

contamination or known areas of naturally poor water quality; 

 the potential for Groundwater Under the Direct Influence (GUDI) of surface water and 

the new rules associated with GUDI wells needs to be taken into account in determining 

geographic locations to test for any new water supplies;  

 geographic areas having existing well yield information showing limited potential for 

higher yielding wells (> 500 m3/day) should be a low priority for further investigation, as 

the aim should be to find a location capable of producing >1000 m3/day; and, 

 the priority search for  well locations should factor in the proximity to the existing 

distribution system and the number of private wells that could potentially be impacted by 

the water taking. 

The following work plan is presented, based on the findings of the SSMP and current 

understanding of the existing conditions. A preliminary cost estimate is presented in Table 4.1. It 

is noted that the work will be conducted in three stages, as outlined in the sections below:

 Stage 1 – assessment of water supply options (Tasks 1 and 2); 

 Stage 2 – investigate new water sources (Tasks 3, 4, 5 and 6); and, 

 Stage 3 – develop new water sources (Task 7). 

73



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

8

3.2 TASK 1 – DEVELOP A WORK PLAN AND PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE 

The first task is to develop a work plan and preliminary schedule to ensure all appropriate 

information is assessed and ensure that the EA process is followed. A preliminary work plan will 

be developed and reviewed by the Town’s Project Team and appropriate review agencies to 

ensure the approach is acceptable and follows the EA process.  The work plan and schedule 

will then be refined accordingly.   

3.3 TASK 2 – ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY OPTIONS 

Background information has been previously compiled and summarized in the SSMP Final 

Report (B. M. Ross, August 2014) and in the SSMP Phase 1 – Environmental Component - 

Existing Conditions Report (Credit Valley Conservation, et al., 2011) and briefly discussed in 

Section 2, above.  This information will form the basis for assessment of water supply source 

options; however the appropriate information will need to be compiled and presented, as part of 

the Class EA process, to document the approach and rationale for assessing the increased use 

of existing sources of water or the development of new sources of water.  The following tasks 

are proposed: 

 compile and summarize existing hydrogeology and water supply information, focusing on 

geographic areas where the potential exists for greater aquifer yields and having good 

natural aquifer protection; 

 update, analyze and summarize existing private water well data; 

 update/verify existing municipal well capacity and identify any potential constraints or 

opportunities for increased water taking from each well, beyond the permitted capacity; 

 an assessment of the constraints and opportunities for future water taking from the Bel-

Erin wells; 

 assess potential areas of exploration for new sources of water; 

 prepare a summary report and recommendations; 

 finalize locations and well testing/monitoring requirements with agencies; 

 prepare and submit final water supply options report and recommendations; and, 

 secure drilling location options. 

3.4 TASK 3 – SECURE DRILLING CONTRACTOR AND LICENCED WELL 
TECHNICIAN 

Once the drilling locations have been determined and secured for test drilling a drilling 

contractor and licensed well technician will be retained.  Our services will assist the Town with 

74



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

9

retaining a drilling contractor and licensed well technician through a tender process to drill and 

conduct a pumping test on the test wells. The following is anticipated with respect to some of 

the requirements of the contract, which will be refined upon completion of Task 2: 

 assume two drilling locations for 6 inch diameter test wells, with an option for an 

additional test well should the first locations not prove successful; 

 ensure the wells are plumb to allow for appropriate pump installation; 

 allow for observation wells to be drilled as part of the assessment, depending on the 

number of existing private wells available for monitoring; 

 secure a temporary Permit To Take Water (PTTW), coordinating the step pumping test 

(e.g. variable increasing pumping rates) of the well and developing the well to a suitable 

level to conduct a pumping test; and, 

 retain the services of a licensed well technician to conduct a pumping test and provide 

the results in a timely manner. 

3.5 TASK 4 – TEST WELL(S) DRILLING AND ASSESSMENT  

The following tasks are proposed as part of the test well drilling contract and associated work to 

assess the potential yield of each well:: 

 obtain a temporary Permit to Take Water (PTTW) from the MOECC to conduct a 

pumping test on the test wells; 

 conduct a private well survey in the area of each proposed test well; 

 prepare well sites for drilling, including access and clearing services; 

 drill test wells (assume two with an optional third location) and any required monitoring 

wells; 

 conduct initial testing to assess potential well yield and water quality; 

 conduct a longer term pumping test (24-72 hours) to assess potential aquifer yield and 

assess water quality trends during pumping;  

 depending on the location of the well, conduct an assessment of the potential for the well  

be a GUDI well, under the current regulations; and, 

 assess the potential need for additional test wells, depending on the potential well yield. 

75



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

10

3.6 TASK 5 – TEST WELL ANALYSES AND YIELD ASSESSMENT 

The following tasks are proposed as part of the analyses of the test well pumping: 

 analyze pumping test results and determine potential aquifer yield in the vicinity of the 

well; 

 determine if the well site is suitable for the installation of a larger diameter production 

well;  

 assess the potential extent of pumping influence in the aquifer; and, 

 assess water quality to drinking water standards and determine if there are any potential 

concerns. 

3.7 TASK 6 – SOURCE WATER PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS 

As part the Clean Water Act (CWA), established in 2006, source protection plans (SPP) were 

developed for each Source Protection Area (SPA). Each SPP requires that areas that are 

potentially vulnerable to surface source of contamination (Vulnerable Areas) must be delineated 

for every existing and planned municipal residential drinking water system. This includes the 

determination of a Wellhead Protection Area (WHPA) and the level of vulnerability to 

contamination within the WHPA as well as a determination of potential threats to the drinking 

water system.  The WHPAs are delineated using a groundwater flow model.  This work has 

been completed for the existing wells, and will need to be updated for any new wells through a 

refinement of the existing groundwater flow model and updating of the water well data base as 

well as the threats data base. The following will need to be completed: 

 Update the existing groundwater flow model for the Town of Erin. The work was 

previously completed by Golder Associates, through Blackport Hydrogeology Inc., and 

will require refinement, using the updated data, in particular information from the test 

drilling and pumping tests to determine local aquifer properties for input into the model. 

 WHPA Delineation and Vulnerability Assessment for the new well sites.  Based on the 

information from the test wells, anticipated production rates will be used in the 

groundwater flow model to develop WHPAs and assess vulnerability in order to 

determine if there are any potential concerns with respect to source water protection. 

 Threats Assessment conducted in the WHPA areas to determine if there are any 

potential issues with respect to source water protection. 

76



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

11

3.8 TASK 7 – DEVELOP PRODUCTION WELL(S) AND OBTAIN A PTTW 

If the test wells show promise, production wells will be drilled in close proximity to the test wells. 

It is proposed that the drilling of the production wells will be an option to the drilling tender, and 

subject to minor revisions based on the findings of the test well drilling, the option to continue 

the drilling contract can be exercised. The following tasks are proposed: 

 refine production well(s) tender documents; 

 evaluate tenders and award contracts, if required; 

 obtain a temporary PTTW to conduct a pumping test; 

 drill production well(s), assume to be 10 inch diameter and develop the well(s) to 

appropriate standards; 

 conduct a long-term pumping test, 72 hours to 7 days, the length will be based on 

discussions with the MOECC and the findings of the test well assessment; 

 analyze pumping test results and water quality; 

 assuming the well(s) is suitable for municipal water supply, prepare supporting 

documentation for the PTTW;  

 confirm  GUDI status; 

 refine Source Water Protection analysis if necessary; and, 

 assist the Town in the submission of the PTTW. 

77



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

12

4.0 Preliminary Cost Estimate

A preliminary cost estimate and time allocation has been prepared and is presented in Table 

4.1. The following is noted: 

 Fees and general disbursements for Stages 2 and 3 are preliminary and will be refined 

once the previous Stage is completed and the findings from the previous stage factored 

into the refinement of fees and general disbursements. 

 Stage 1 costs and time allocation are based on the current understanding of the existing 

data, the anticipated water supply requirements and the requirements of the Class EA 

process. Costs are presented for professional fees and general disbursement only. Fees 

and general disbursement costs for Stage 1 are considered an upset limit. 

 Stage 2 costs and time allocation are preliminary, with costs based on estimated time 

and well drilling/testing requirements. Preliminary contractor costs are provided for 

general planning purposes and are based on factors such as: initial estimates of depth of 

drilling, anticipated length of pumping tests, the level of effort required to update the 

groundwater model, and typical water quality analyses required.   

 Stage 2 costs will be refined after the Stage 1 work, upon selection of potential drilling 

locations and an understanding of regulatory agency requirements, after consultation 

with the appropriate agencies.  

 The costs assume two test wells and two production wells will be drilled, with the test 

wells being 6-inch diameter wells and the production wells being 10-inch diameter wells.  

It is anticipated that there will be an option to drill a third test well, if necessary, but this is 

currently not included in the preliminary cost estimate. 

 Pumping tests are expected to range from 24 hours to 7 days in length, and will be 

refined in consultation with Technical Support at the MOECC. It is often difficult to 

determine the appropriate length of a pumping test, as it will depend on the water level 

response throughout the aquifer system during the test. For costing purposes, it is 

assumed that the test wells will be pumped for short periods, from 24 hours to 72 hours 

while the production wells will be pumped for 5 days. 

78



ERIN SSMP – WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA 

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT AND UPGRADES 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   

13

5.0 Preliminary Schedule 

A preliminary schedule has been prepared, based on anticipated level of effort and estimated 

timing for various tasks and is presented in Table 5.1.  The schedule will be reviewed and 

refined after each task.  The following is noted: 

 Stage 1 – the Schedule is relatively firm as there are few tasks requiring specific timing 

or input from various parties to complete the tasks, once the work plan is refined.  

 Stage 2 – the Schedule is based on a number of factors and is preliminary. Factors 

affecting the scheduling include, but not limited to: 

o timing of Council meetings to make decisions; 

o availability of agencies to meet and provide input/responses, including such 

things as obtaining temporary a temporary PTTW; 

o availability of drilling contractors after awarding of contract; 

o negotiations with potential land owners to obtain access to drill on their property;   

o weather conditions impacting timing of field work; and, 

o time required to update and calibrate the groundwater flow model and develop 

new WHPAs.  

 Stage 3 – the Schedule is preliminary and based the similar factors as in Stage 2, 

including but not limited to the following: 

o timing of Council meetings to make decisions; 

o availability of agencies to meet and provide input/responses, including such 

things as obtaining a temporary PTTW to conduct a pumping test; 

o timing/availability of drilling contractors to drill the production well(s); and, 

o time of year and weather conditions impacting timing and duration of field work. 

Also included in the preliminary Schedule are anticipated project meetings including, project 

team meetings, agency meetings and public consultation meetings.  

79



proposal\Table  4.1_Erin_Water_Component_Cost_Estimate_April_13_2015 (2).xlsx 1

ERIN SSMP - WATER COMPONENT CLASS EA - Assessment and Development of Water Supply Options
BLACKPORT HYDROGEOLOGY INC.
TABLE 4.1:  PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE AND TIME ALLOCATION

Ray Blackport Andrew Pentney Technician
CAD/GIS 
Design

Engineering 
Support

Administrative 
Support Disbursements

Sr. 
Hydrogeologist 

Hydrogeologist
CAD/GIS 
Design

Engineering 
Support

Administrative 
Support

General Office 
Expenses, Travel, 
Equipment Rental

$125 $105 $75 $105 $165 $75
STAGE 1 - Assessment of Water Supply Options
Task 1 : Develop a Work Plan and Preliminary Schedule

1.1 Develop a Preliminary Work Plan and Schedule 24.0 4.0 4.0 32.0 $3,720 $3,720
1.2 Refine Work Plan and Preliminary Schedule 8.0 8.0 $1,000 $1,000

Task 1 : Develop a Work Plan and Preliminary Schedule - Cost Summary $4,720 $0 $4,720
Task 2: Assessment of Water Supply Source Options

2.1 Compile and Summarize Existing Hydrogeology and Water Supply Information 16.0 8.0 8.0 4.0 36.0 $4,340 $4,340
2.2 Analyze and Summarize Water Supply Data and Update Existing Well Capacity 16.0 8.0 24.0 $2,840 $2,840
2.3 Assess Potential Areas of Exploration for new Sources of Water 24.0 12.0 8.0 6.0 50.0 $6,090 $200 $6,290
2.4 Prepare a Summary Report and Recommendations 36.0 8.0 8.0 52.0 $5,940 $120 $6,060
2.5 Finalize Locations and Well Testing Requirements with Agencies 20.0 8.0 28.0 $3,340 $240 $3,580
2.6 Prepare and submit final water supply options report and recommendations 24.0 12.0  12.0 8.0 8.0 64.0 $7,440 $120 $7,560
2.7 Secure Drilling Location Options 16.0 12.0 28.0 $3,260 $60 $3,320

Task 2: Assessment of Water Supply Source Options - Cost Summary $33,250 $740 $33,990
STAGE 2: Investigate New Water Sources
Task 3:Secure Drilling Contractor

3.1 Prepare Tender / Quotation documents 20.0 8.0 28.0 $3,820 $3,820
3.2 Evaluate Tenders and Make Recommendation to Council to Award Contract 8.0 4.0 8.0 20.0 $2,260 $2,260

Task 3:Secure Drilling Contractor - Cost Summary $6,080 $0 $6,080
Task 4:Test Well Drilling and Assessment

4.1 Obtain Temporary PTTW 8.0 4.0 12.0 $1,420 $700 $2,120
4.2 Conduct Private Well Survey 4.0 12.0 40.0 56.0 $4,760 $600 $5,360
4.3 Prepare Field Sites for Drilling 4.0 8.0 6.0 18.0 $1,790 $1,790
4.4 Drill test wells / monitoring wells 12.0 12.0 24.0 48.0 $4,560 $300 $4,860
4.5 Conduct Initial Testing and water quality analysis 4.0 8.0 12.0 $1,340 $800 $2,140
4.6 Conduct Extended Pumping Test and Water quality sampling 8.0 16.0 24.0 $2,200 $200 $2,400
4.7 Assessment of the need for Additional Wells 8.0 4.0 4.0 16.0 $2,080 $2,080

Task 4:Test Well Drilling and Assessment - Cost Summary $18,150 $2,600 $20,750
Task 5: Test Well Analyses and Yield Assessment

5.1 Analyze Pumping Test Results and Determine Well Yields 24.0 12.0 4.0 40.0 $4,560 $4,560
5.2 Assess Water Quality 4.0 4.0 $500 $500
5.3 Prepare Summary Report and Present Recommendations 28.0 8.0 24.0 12.0 8.0 80.0 $9,440 $9,440

Task 5: Test Well Analyses and Yield Assessment - Cost Summary $14,500 $0 $14,500
Task 6: Source Water Protection Requirements

6.1 Update Groundwater Flow model 16.0 4.0 8.0 4.0 32.0 $3,920 $3,920
6.2 WHPA Delineation and Vulnerability Assessment 20.0 4.0 4.0 28.0 $3,340 $3,340
6.3 Issues Evaluation and Threats Assessment 20.0 8.0 28.0 $3,100 $3,100

Task 6: Source Water Protection Requirements - Cost Summary $10,360 $0 $10,360
STAGE 3: Develop New Water Source(s)
Task 7: Develop Production Well(s) and Obtain Permit To Take Water

7.1 Prepare Production Well Tender documents 12.0 4.0 8.0 24.0 $2,760 $2,760
7.2 Evaluate Tenders and Make Recommendation to Council to Award Contract 4.0 4.0 4.0 12.0 $1,580 $1,580
7.3 Obtain Temporary PTTW 12.0 4.0 16.0 $1,920 $700 $2,620
7.4 Drill Production Well(s) and Conduct Pumping Test 24.0 12.0 12.0 48.0 $5,160 $700 $5,860
7.5 Analyze Pumping Test Results and Water Quality 24.0 12.0 36.0 $4,260 $4,260
7.6 Prepare Supporting Documention for PTTW Application 32.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 4.0 60.0 $7,300 $7,300
7.7 Assist Town Submission of PTTW 8.0 8.0 $1,000 $3,000 $4,000

Task 7: Develop Production Well(s) and Obtain Permit To Take Water - Cost Summary $23,980 $4,400 $28,380
TOTAL TIME (hours) 488.0 188.0 102.0 72.0 66.0 56.0 972.0

TOTAL 61,000.0 19,740.0 7,650.0 7,560.0 10,890.0 4,200.0 111,040.0 $111,040 $7,740 $118,780
Notes Estimated Contractor Disbursements
Test Well Drilling and Pumping Test (assume two test wells with an option for a third well) $80,000
Production Well Drilling and Pumping Test (assume two Production wells) $120,000
Water Quality Testing $9,000
Source Water Protection Updates $24,000 $233,000

Fees per Task

Town of Erin

Project Team Member Name: 

Role in Project: 

Hourly Rate: 

Total Hours Total Cost per 
Task

80



Table 5.1:  Erin SSMP - Water Component Class EA - Preliminary Project Schedule

Year 2015 Year 2016

1.1 Develop a Preliminary Work Plan and Schedule
1.2 Refine Work Plan and Schedule

2.1 Compile and Summarize Existing Hydrogeology and Water Supply Information 
2.2 Analyze and Summarize Water Supply Data and Update Existing Well Capacity
2.3 Assess Potential Areas of Exploration for new Sources of Water
2.4 Prepare a Summary Report and Recommendations
2.5 Finalize Locations and Well Testing Requirements with Agencies
2.6 Prepare and submit final water supply options report and recommendations
2.7 Secure Drilling Location Options
STAGE 2: Investigate New Water Sources

3.1 Prepare Tender / Quotation documents
3.2 Evaluate Tenders / make Recommendations to Council to Award Contracts

Task 4 - Test Well Drilling and Assessment of Potential Water Supply
4.1 Obtain Temporary Permit to Take Water 
4.2 Conduct Private Well Survey
4.3 Prepare Field Sites for Drilling
4.4 Drill Test Wells / Monitoring wells
4.5 Conduct Initial Testing and Water Quality Analyses 
4.6 Conduct Extended Pumping Test and Water Quality Sampling
4.7 Assess the Need for Additional Test Wells

5.1 Analyze Pumping Test Results and Determine Potential Well Yields
5.2 Assess Water Quality
5.3 Prepare Summary Report and Present Recommendations 

6.1 Update Groundwater Flow Model
6.2 WHPA Delineation and Vulnerability Assessment 
6.3 Issues Evaluation and Threats Assessment
STAGE 3: Develop New Water Source(s)

7.1 Refine Production Well Tender Documents
7.2  Make Recommendations to Council to Continue Contracts or Retender
7.3 Obtain Temporay PTTW
7.4 Drill Production Well(s) and Conduct Pumping Test
7.5 Analyze Pumping Test Results and Water Quality
7.6 Prepare Supporting Documentation for PTTW Application
7.7 Assist Town in Submission of PTTW

8.1 STAGE 1 - Project Team Meetings + + +
8.2 STAGE 1 - Agency Meetings + + + +
8.3 STAGE 1 - Public Consultation Meetings + +
8.4 STAGE 2 - Project Team Meetings +
8.5 STAGE 2 - Agency Meetings +
8.6 STAGE 2 - Public Consultation Meetings

Task 5 - Test Well Analysis and Yield Assessment

Task 7 - Develop New Production Well(s) and Obtain Permit To Take Water

Anticpated Project Meetings

Task 6 - Source Water Protection Requirements

Work Task Description
April May May JuneJuly Oct Feb Mar AprilJune NovAug Sept JanDec Aug

Task 2 - Assessment of Water Supply Options

Task 3 - Secure Drilling Contractor

Task 1 - Develop a Work Plan and Preliminary Schedule

July
STAGE 1 - Assessment of Water Supply Options

81



 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

82



proposal\Triton Fee Estimate Water Component Class EA(v1).xlsx 1

MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY COMPONENT CLASS EA - PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND CLASS EA CO-ORDINATION
TRITON ENGINEERING SERVICES LIMITED
PRELIMINARY TIME ALLOCATION AND COST ESTIMATE

Christine 
Furlong Dale Murray Engineering 

Support Drafting Administrative 
Support

Senior 
Engineer/ 
Project Manager

Consultant Engineering 
Support

CAD/GIS 
Design

Administrative 
Support

Travel Printing Disbursement 
Total  

$150 $215 $90 $90 $75
PROPOSED SCHEDULE B CLASS ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
PHASE 1 -- PROBLEM OR OPPORTUNITY 

4.1 Develop the problem statement for the study with Blackport 1.0 1.0 $150 $150

4.2
Consult with Town staff and Blackport to initiate project, review project purpose and 
identify available background information 4.0 4.0 8.0 $900 $85 $985

4.3
Identify, review and ensure regulatory policies are followed for source water protection, 
ground water under the direct influence of surface water, Class EA, etc. 4.0 2.0 6.0 $1,030 $85 $1,115

4.4 Initiate public consultation process including identification of stakeholders 8.0 2.0 16.0 26.0 $2,580 $100 $2,680
4.5 Project Management 4.0 1.0 8.0 13.0 $1,415 $70 $1,485

CLASS EA PHASE 1 COSTS $6,075 $340 $6,415
PHASE 2 -- ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS

4.1 Review and confirm water supply and storage deficiencies identified in the SSMP 8.0 4.0 12.0 $1,560 $1,560

4.2
Review and confirm water supply and storage alternative solutions identified in the 
SSMP and consult with Town and Blackport to confirm alternatives 24.0 2.0 4.0 30.0 $4,330 $70 $4,400

4.3
Inventory existing terrestrial, aquatic, cultural, social, technical and financial 
environments 24.0 8.0 4.0 36.0 $4,620 $70 $4,690

4.4
Review and confirm SSMP preliminary capital cost estimates for the proposed 
alternative solutions 32.0 4.0 36.0 $5,100 $5,100

4.5 Evaluate alternatives and recommend preferred solution 32.0 2.0 80.0 16.0 4.0 134.0 $14,170 $14,170

4.6
Prepare appropriate material for a Public Information Centre (PIC) and attend PIC to 
present alternative solutions and recommended preferred solution to the public 16.0 32.0 32.0 80.0 $7,680 $85 $1,000 $8,765

4.7
Select preferred solution and identify the Class EA schedule under which the Project will 
be undertaken 6.0 6.0 $900 $900

4.8 Project Management and Project Documentation 24.0 40.0 64.0 $6,600 $200 $6,800
CLASS EA PHASE 2 COSTS $44,960 $1,425 $46,385

TOTAL $51,035 $1,765 $52,800
TOTAL TIME (hours) 187.0 7.0 84.0 58.0 116.0 452.0

TOTAL COST (excluding HST) $28,050 $1,505 $7,560 $5,220 $8,700 $51,035 $1,765 $52,800

Fees per Task  Disbursements

Town of Erin

Project Team Member Name: 

Role in Project: 

Total Cost per 
Task

Hourly Rate: 

Total Hours

83



Page 1 of 1

Description of Request Person Responsible
Date 

Directed
Suggested 
Completion Status

Fill By-law CAO 2014 19-May-15 50%

Celebrate Erin Committee 16-Dec-14 18-Apr-15 90%

Stanley Park Arch and Gates - ownership/formal 
designation CAO/Heritage Committee 20-Jan-15 31-Dec-15 50%

Sideroad 10 unopened road allowance - possible 
closure of portion CAO 20-Jan-15 n/a 50%

Review of Committees of Council CAO/Economic Development 
Coordinator 3-Feb-15 31-Dec-15

Set dates for Special Meetings - strategic initiatives Counicl 3-Feb-15 ongoing as scheduled

Victoria Park - Concession booth work/rent Facilities Manager 7-Apr-15 19-May-15

Mayor and Reeves Wall of Recognition New Council 2014 2015

Report on cost and practicality of implementing a ban 
on the sale of bottled water in Town owned Facilities Facilities Manager 16-Dec-14 3-Feb-15 100%

Economic Development Committee Economic Development 
Officer 16-Dec-14 3-Feb 100%

Establish Ad Hoc Committee - Grant Requests Director of Finance/CAO 3-Feb-15 17-Feb 100%

Report - Procedural By-law changes Clerk 3-Feb-15 3-Mar 100%

Provide comments to Halton Region regarding 4th Line 
Well Field Explansion by March 9 Water Superintendent 17-Feb-15 9-Mar 100%

Provide comments to the Ministry of Transportation, 
Ontario Good Roads Association and Association of 
Municipalities of Ontario opposing any amendment to 
default speed limits.

Roads Superintendent 17-Feb-15 27-Feb 100%

Integrity Commissioner - implications of rescinding 
Code of Ethics CAO/Integrity Commissioner 3-Feb-15 7-Apr-15 100%

Activity List 2015

Open Items

Completed Items

84



85



86



87



88



 

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



 

RESOLUTION 
 

Resolution # 

 

Moved By Councillor Matt Sammut 

 

Seconded By 

 

Be it resolved that Council directs staff to amend the Procedural By-law to add 

the item “Business Arising From the Minutes” to the regular meeting agenda, and 

to bring the amended by-law forward for consideration at the next regular 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 
Matt Sammut 

                       Councillor 
                  Corporation of the Town of Erin 
 
 
        Office:   (519) 855-4407 

     Home:   (519) 833-4664  
     Fax: (519) 855-4821 
     E-mail:  matt.sammut@erin.ca 
5684 Trafalgar Rd. Hillsburgh, ON  N0B 1Z0 
www.erin.ca 

101

mailto:jeff.duncan@erin.ca
http://www.erin.ca/


102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131


	Agenda
	5.1 April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting
	Back to Agenda

	7.1 Geraldine Walsh - Requesting declaration regarding the Blue Dot Movement
	Back to Agenda

	7.2 Barry Pennington - Request to re-instate parking on Waterford Drive
	Back to Agenda

	8.1.1 Roads Superintendent - Roads Department Staffing
	Back to Agenda

	8.2.1 Water Superintendent - Well house Data Logger Installation
	Back to Agenda

	8.3.1 CAO/Town Manager - Grass Cutting and Trimming Services Contract
	Back to Agenda

	8.4.1 Director of Finance - 2015 Budget Report
	Back to Agenda

	8.4.2 Revenue Administrator - Water Arrears to Taxes
	Back to Agenda

	8.5.1 Ballinafad Community Centre  - March 4 and 10 meeting minutes
	Back to Agenda

	8.5.2 Economic Development Committee - February 18 and March 11, 2015 meeting minutes
	Back to Agenda

	10.2.1 Triton Engineering - Water Servicing Class Environmental Assessment Proposal
	Back to Agenda

	11.1 Activity List
	Back to Agenda

	11.2 Town of Erin 2014 Treaurer's Statement of Remuneration and Expenses Paid to Council and Local Board Members
	Back to Agenda

	11.3 Minister Responsible for Seniors Affairs - Senior Achievement Award
	Back to Agenda

	11.4 Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade - Lincoln M. Alexander Award 2015
	Back to Agenda

	11.5 Township of Madawaska Valley - Request for support resolution regarding Hydro rates
	Back to Agenda

	11.6 Hillsburgh Firefighters Association - Requesting yearly grant for the Annual Garage Sale held at Hillsburgh Community Centre
	Back to Agenda

	11.7 Silvia Jones, MPP Dufferin-Caledon - Request for support, Bill 36 the Respecting Private Property Act
	Back to Agenda

	11.8 Triton Engineering - Recommendation for final acceptance of site grading for Crewson Ridge Subdivision
	Back to Agenda

	12.1 Councillor Sammut - Motion for reconsideration of Resolution # 15-077, and follow up motion
	Back to Agenda

	13. By-Laws
	Back to Agenda


